

COUNTY OF SPOKANE WASHINGTON

BÉLA G. KOVÁCS DIRECTOR

Department Of Purchasing

Phone (509) 477-2301 Fax (509) 477-6627

INVITATION TO BID, SMALL WORKS ROSTER PROGRAM BID NUMBER: P9230 Geiger Mag Lock and Fire Alarm CPU Installation

BID RESPONSES ARE DUE BY 3:00 P.M. local time on Thursday, February 26, 2015 in the Spokane County Purchasing Department, 1101 W. College Ave., Suite 241B, Spokane, WA 99201. Bids delivered after the bid closing date may be rejected as non-responsive.

BID DEPOSIT REQUIRED. In accordance with RCW 36.32.235(5), No bid under the Small Works Roster may be considered for public work unless it is accompanied by a bid deposit in the form of a surety bond, postal money order, cash, cashier's check, or certified check in an amount equal to five percent (5%) of the amount of the bid proposed including sales tax. See details below.

PROJECT ESTIMATE: \$28,000.00

DEPARTMENT: Detention Services – Geiger Correction Center

EACH BID SHALL BE SEALED in an opaque envelope which has been clearly marked in the upper left corner with the words "Bid By" followed by the name and address of the bidder. In the lower left corner of the envelope the bidder shall write out the bid number "P9230", bid opening date of "February 26, 2015", and name of the bid "Geiger Mag Lock and Fire Alarm CPU Installation".

SUBMITTALS must be made on the bid response sheets contained in this invitation to bid document.

NO BIDDER may withdraw his bid after the time set for the opening thereof, unless the award of contract is delayed for a period exceeding sixty (60) calendar days. However, the Board of County Commissioners may reject any or all bids for good cause.

BID ISSUE DATE: February 11, 2015

SPOKANE COUNTY PURCHASE DEPARTMENT ADDRESS: Public Health Building 1101 W. College Ave., Suite 241B Spokane, WA 99201

SUBMITTALS from minority, women and disadvantaged business enterprises are encouraged.

NATURE OF THE PROJECT: This Small Works Roster, Public Works project consists of upgrading the existing access control system to include magnetic locks on fire escape doors and installing a new fire alarm system control panel, and other related miscellaneous items.

A PRE-BID CONFERENCE will be held for interested bidders at 10:00 a.m. on Thursday, February 19, 2015, at Geiger Administrative Building, 3507 S. Spotted Rd., Spokane, WA 99204. Bidders are strongly urged to attend.

FOR TECHNICAL INFORMATION, contact Tim Houtz, of Geiger Corrections Center at (509) 720-4382.

FOR ADMINISTRATIVE INFORMATION, contact Bob Boyce, Buyer 3, in the Spokane County Purchasing Department at (509) 477-3694. Reference Project Number P9230.

Detention Services

ohn McGrath, Captain

Detention Services Commander

Date

urchasing Director

THIS IS NOT AN ORDER. THIS IS AN INVITATION TO BID WHICH DOES NOT OBLIGATE SPOKANE COUNTY TO PLACE AN ORDER

Spokane County Purchasing Department 1101 W. College Ave., Suite 241B Spokane, WA 99201

Cannot handle due to present work load



Project Number:

SWR Project No. P9230 Geiger Mag Lock and Fire Alarm CPU Installation

NO BID STATEMENT

Attention: Bob Boyce, Buyer 3; Phone: (509) 477-3694; Email: rboyce@spokanecounty.org

A response to the Invitation to Bid is not being submitted for the following reason(s):

Receipt of this completed form will assist us in calling for future submittal work of this nature. Please complete and submit this form prior to the bid closing date as shown on the Invitation to Bid notice or document.

Cannot meet delivery requirements

Licensing restrictions (p	lease explain)		Other (please explain be	elow)
	Authorized Company Official – Signat	turo an	1 Titlo	Date
Please remove us from your vendor mailing list	Authorized Company Official – Signat	uic air	i Tide	Date
☐ Yes ☐ No				
Do not write in this space		Firr	n Name	
		Add	dress	
		City		
		City	1	
		Sta	te	Zip Code
		Tel	ephone Number	

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Section	Description	Page
BID RESPONSE SECTION		4
Bidder (Contractor) Responsibility Criteria		10
Subcontractor Responsibility		10
Bid Deposit		14
ATTACHMENT A – SMALL WORKS ROSTER	FERMS & CONDITIONS/SPECIFICATION SHEET	15
General Project Description		15
Technical Specifications		17
ATTACHMENT B - INFORMATION FOR BIDDI	ERS	20
ATTACHMENT C - INSURANCE REQUIREMEN	NTS	23
ATTACHMENT D - LIQUIDATED DAMAGE TA	BLE	25
ATTACHMENT E - BOND FORMS		26
ATTACHMENT F - INDEX OF PREVAILING W	AGE SCHEDULE DOCUMENTS	29
ATTACHMENT G - SAMPLE CONTRACT		30
ATTACHMENT H – SMALL WORKS ROSTER A	APPLICATION FORMS	35

BID RESPONSE SECTION

BID PROPOSAL

INSTRUCTIONS: Complete and submit the following pages:

- 1. This Bid Response Section, Pages 4 through 14); plus
- 2. List of Materials, Pages 17 and 18; plus
- 3. Bid Bond*, Page 27; plus
- 4. Attachment H Small Works Roster Application Form Pages 35 and 36 (if you are currently not on the Spokane County Small Works Roster).

* IT IS STRONGLY RECOMMENDED THAT YOU USE THE COUNTY'S BID BOND FORM.

NAME OF FIRM SUBMITTING BID:		

EACH BID shall constitute an offer to Spokane County as outlined herein and no bidder may withdraw his bid after the hour set for the bid opening thereof except under the conditions explained in the Information to Bidders attachment.

RECEIPT OF ADDENDA: Each bid shall include specific acknowledgment of receipt of all addenda issued, if any, during the bidding period. Failure to acknowledge receipt may result in the bid being rejected as not responsive. Space is provided in the bid to make such acknowledgments. Bidder acknowledges receipt of the following addenda:

Addendum No.	Date	Addendum No.	Date	Addendum No.	Date

REJECTION: The County reserves the right to reject any or all proposals, portions or parts thereof good cause, and to waive all minor irregularities in bidding. Special attention will be directed to the qualifications of the bidders when considering awarding a contract.

BID GUARANTEE: A 5% bid bond is required with submission.

PRICES: Each bid item will be priced. Unit prices, if requested, shall govern in case of extension error.

THIS BID IS ELIGIBLE FOR THE CONTRACTOR'S BOND (BOND) ELECTION to withhold 50% retainage in lieu of furnishing a Contractor's Bond (Performance And Payment Bond).

SUBMITTAL: The "Bid Response Documents" Section constitutes the Bid Proposal when completed. Please do not submit the entire Invitation to Bid Document.

PRICES: Each bid item will be priced. Unit prices, if requested, shall govern in case of error.

FREIGHT: Bid price(s) to include all freight costs to the job site.

ARBITRATION: There will be no arbitration arising out of or relating to the contract.

BID ITEM 1 - LUMP SUM BASE BID Geiger Mag Lock and Fire Alarm CPU Installation per specifications.		
BASE BID =	\$	
8.7% SALES TAX: =	\$	
TOTAL: =	\$	

SUPPLEMENTAL EVALUATION ITEMS

SUPPLEMENTAL EVALUATION ITEM 1 - CASH DISCOUNT
The bidder offers a cash discount of
NOTE: Cook discounts loss than 20/ OR discount periods loss than 20 working days will not be considered as evaluation.

NOTE: Cash discounts less than 2% <u>OR</u> discount periods less than 20 working days will not be considered as evaluation factors in the award of a contract. For bid tabulation purposes leaving this item blank will be considered a submission of "none" or no discount offered. If no cash discount is offered or the space is left blank or the County does not accept the terms then the payment terms shall be the County payment terms as set forth in the General Conditions.

SUPPLEMENTAL EVALUATION ITEM 2 - TIME FOR COMPLETION: Consideration will be given to the number of completion days closest to the County's specified Time for Completion. County reserves the right to reject as a minor irregularity any response in this section, including a bidder's Deviated Time for Completion if, in the opinion of the County, the deviation is deemed to be minor. TIME FOR COMPLETION: The County specifies that the Work specified in this Invitation to Bid (ITB) be completed within fifteen (15) continuous calendar days from the date of commencement as stipulated in a notice to proceed. The "Time for Completion" includes all lead-time for ordering and transit and shipment of materials, supplies and equipment, as well as, any and all times for mobilization, etc. Unless otherwise specified in the Notice to Proceed ("NTP"), the Commencement Date shall be effective on the date of the Notice to Proceed. The NTP is not issued until the Contract has been fully signed and not until the County has received the successful contractor's insurance and contractor's bond as reviewed and approved by the County Director of Risk Management. Bidder must respond to item 2.1; and only to items 2.2 and 2.3 if their response to 2.1 is "NO". 2.1 The Work contemplated under this bid shall be completed on, or before, the above County specified Time for Completion (mark only <u>one</u> of the following two responses): YES – the Work will be completed on, or before, the above County-specified Time for Completion. If bidder selects "YES" then the bidder need not mark a response under 2.2 and/or 2.3. NO – the Work *cannot* (in the opinion of the bidder) be completed, on or before, the above Countyspecified Time for Completion. If bidder selects "NO" then bidder must indicate below, in 2.2 and 2.3, the bidder's Deviated Time for Completion). 2.2 Complete this item only if bidder marked "NO" in Item 2.1. Bidder commits to the following number of calendar days as their Deviated Time for Completion (inclusive of all lead-times and project mobilization times, etc.) from the Commencement Date specified on the Notice to Proceed issued by the County to complete the Work specified in this ITB. Bidder's Deviated Time for Completion is: Calendar Days from County issued Notice to Proceed 2.3 (OPTIONAL) For informational purposes, the bidder may identify below any extraordinary related conditions that may apply such as availability of critical equipment, materials or component, lead time, weather, etc., and describe the impact. This information may, or may not, at the sole discretion of the County, be used by the County in making an award. Person/Entity Name: Signature Of Bidder:

CONTRACTOR'S BOND. Indicate your election belection to use 50% Retainage in lieu of a Performance contracts valued at \$35,000, or less, [RCW 39.04.01] Failure of the bidder to indicate its election herein with	50% RETAINAGE BOND ELECTION IN LIEU OF A by marking the appropriate box in the space provided below. The see and Payment Bond ("Contractor's Bond" or "Bond") is limited to [10(3)] and applies only when specifically allowed by the County ill be taken as notice to the County that the successful bidder shall cost of the Bond is included in the bid price as submitted.
a Bond in lieu of 50% Retainage. If a Bond was elect	bidder, after award, may furnish at no additional cost to the County, ted to be furnished either by indication or by leaving the box belowing after the bid submittal due date and time to subsequently elect
INDICATE YOUR ELECTION BY MARKING $\underline{0}$	<u>ONE</u> BOX (select one box only):
= YES – I, the undersigned Bidder, hereby Performance & Payment (Contractor's) I	y elect that the County withhold 50% Retainage <i>in lieu</i> of a Bond.
of a Performance & Payment (Contracto	elect to <u>NOT</u> have the County withhold 50% Retainage <i>in lieu</i> or's) Bond. <i>Therefore, I the undersigned Bidder shall furnish a</i>) Bond in conformity with the requirements of this Invitation to
Person/Entity Name:	Signature Of Bidder:

REPRESENTATIONS AND CERTIFICATIONS

ANTI-KICKBACK No officer or employee of the County, having the power or duty to perform an official act or action related to this submittal, shall have or acquire any interest in this submittal, or have solicited, accepted or granted a present or future gift, favor, service, or other thing of value from or to any person involved in this submittal.

REPRESENTATION: In submitting this bid we represent that the bid documents have been read and understood, that the site has been visited and or that we have familiarized ourselves with the local conditions under which the work is to be performed, that by signature of this proposal we acknowledge all requirements and that we have signed all certificates contained herein.

REPRESENTATION: In submitting this bid we acknowledge the requirements and conditions applicable to bid deposits in the form of a cash bid deposit or surety bond bid deposit.

I CERTIFY that no final determination of violation of RCW 50.12.070(1)(b), 50.16.070(1)(b), or 82.32.070(1)(b) has been made by the Washington State Departments of Employment Security, Labor And Industries or Revenue respectively dated within two years of the date of the opening of this bid. I understand further that no bid may be submitted, considered or contract awarded for a public work to any person or entity that has a determination of violation of the above referenced statutes within two years from the date that a violation is finally determined and the date of this bid opening.

I CERTIFY that we are not presently debarred, suspended or in any way are excluded from procurement actions by any State or Local governmental agency. Further, I specifically certify that we are not presently debarred from bidding, or having a bid considered, on any public works contract by the Washington State Departments of Employment Security, Labor And Industries or Revenue respectively or, having been debarred, that it has been at least a one or two year period of the date of the opening of this bid since monetary penalties have been paid as a result of a Notice of Violation. I understand further that no bid may be submitted, considered or contract awarded for a public work to any person or entity that has a determination of violation of prevailing wage law within two years from the date that a violation is finally determined and the date of this bid opening; and

I CERTIFY that to the best of my knowledge the information contained in this proposal is accurate and complete and that I have the legal authority to commit this Firm to a contractual agreement. I realize the final funding for any service is based upon budget levels and the approval of the Spokane County Board of Commissioners.

I CERTIFY In submitting the bid to do the work as outlined in the Contract Specifications, I hereby certify that we are not currently debarred, suspended, ineligible for, or otherwise excluded from participation in Federal Assistance programs under Executive Order 12549, Title 31 U.S. Code 6101 Note, Executive Order 12549, Executive Order 12689, Title 48 Codified Federal Regulation 9.404, "Debarment and Suspension". Further I certify that this Firm will not contract with a subcontractor that is likewise debarred, suspended, ineligible for, or otherwise excluded, as referenced in the foregoing Executive Orders, U.S. Codes and Codified Federal Regulations; and

THE BIDDER CERTIFIES below that its bid complies in all respects with the attached specification documents, including the minimum specifications, unless otherwise noted under the Compliance Certification page, Section 2: SPECIFICATION COMPLIANCE.

Name:	
	person/entity submitting bid (print)
Signatu	re:
Title: _	
Date: _	

CONTRACTOR'S ADMINISTRATIVE INFORMATION

1. PERSON/ENTITY

- a. Name as registered with the State Of Washington:
- b. Physical Address:
- c. Mailing Address including zip code:
- d. Remit To Address including zip code:
- e. Telephone number including area code:
- f. Fax number including area code:
- g. E-mail address for business correspondence:
- h. Washington State Contractors Registration/License Number:
- i. Federal Tax Identification Number:
- j. Washington State UBI Number:
- k. State Industrial Account Identification Number:
- 1. Contractor's Representative and contact information;
- m. Contractor's Superintendent and contact information;

2. INSURANCE COMPANY:

- a. Name of company:
- b. Mailing Address including zip code:
- c. Insurance Agent Name:
- d. Insurance Agent Telephone number including area code:
- e. Insurance Agent Fax number including area code:

3. BONDING COMPANY:

- a. Surety Name:
- b. Surety Mailing Address including zip code:
- c. Bonding Agent Name:
- d. Bonding Agent Mailing Address including zip code:
- e. Bonding Agent Telephone number including area code:
- f. Bonding Agent Fax number including area code:

Person/Entity Name:	Signature Of Bidder:	

PART I: - BIDDER (CONTRACTOR) RESPONSIBILITY CRITERIA - RCW 39.04.350(1)

It is the intent of the County to award a contract to the low responsible bidder. Before award, the bidder must meet the following bidder responsibility criteria to be considered a responsible bidder. Failure to meet the requirements under Part I: - Bidder (Contractor) Responsibility Criteria [i.e., RCW 39.04.350(1)] will render submittal non-responsive and will be cause for rejection without further consideration. Unless otherwise indicated below, the bidder is required to submit, along with their bid, information or documentation demonstrating compliance with the following criteria (the identification numbers listed below are to be provided in the Bidder Administrative Information section of the bid response):

- 1. The bidder (contractor) must have, and provide, the bidder's current Washington State Contractors License Number. Bidder must have a current certificate of registration as a contractor in compliance with chapter 18.27 RCW, which must have been in effect at the time of bid submittal;
- 2. The bidder (contractor) must have, and provide, the bidder's current Washington Unified Business Identifier (UBI) number;
- 3. The bidder (contractor) must have, and provide evidence of, Industrial Insurance (workers' compensation) coverage for the bidder's employees working in Washington, as required in Title 51 RCW;
- 4. The bidder (contractor) may be required to submit evidence or documentation that they are not disqualified from bidding on any public works contract under RCW 39.06.010 or 39.12.065(3).
- 5. The bidder (contractor) may be required to submit evidence or documentation that they have not been found out of compliance with the Washington State Apprenticeship rules under RCW 39.04.320.
- 6. The Bidder (contractor) may be required to submit evidence or documentation that they have not been found in violation of RCW 39.04.370.

PART II: - SUBCONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITY

The bidder (contractor) shall include the language of this section in each of its first tier subcontracts, and shall require each of its subcontractors to include the same language of this section in each of their subcontracts, adjusting only as necessary the terms used for the contracting parties. Upon request of the County, the bidder (contractor) shall promptly provide documentation to the County demonstrating that the subcontractor meets the subcontractor responsibility criteria as set forth herein. The requirements of this section apply to all subcontractors regardless of tier. At the time of subcontract execution, the Contractor shall verify that each of its first tier subcontractors meets the bidder responsibility criteria as set forth above in Bidder (Contractor) Responsibility Criteria, Part I.

BIDDER'S STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH BIDDER RESPONSIBILITY CRITERIA: In submitting this bid we, the undersigned bidder, represent that we have read and understand the Bidder Responsibility Criteria requirements. By signature below, and by submitting a bid we, the undersigned bidder, acknowledge and certify that this bid submittal is in compliance in all respects with the Bidder Responsibility Criteria requirements of the Invitation to Bid. Bidder agrees that the County determination of Bidder responsibility for this project shall be final.

Bidder/Entity Name	Signature Of Bidder
Print Name of Signer	Print Title of Signer

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATIONS

1. PROJECT COMPLIANCE

In compliance with the request for quotation, bidder hereby proposes to perform all work for this project in str	rict
accordance with the contract documents, within the time set forth therein, and at the prices bid.	

2. <u>SPECIFICATION COMPLIANCE</u>
The bidder certifies below that his bid complies in all respects with the attached specification documents, including the minimum specifications (CHECK YES OR NO BELOW).
□ YES □ NO
If NO, list below, in detail, any and all deviations.
<u>LIST DEVIATIONS</u> : (Add additional pages if necessary)
3. <u>BENEFICIAL INTEREST DISCLOSURE STATEMENT</u>
In accordance with Chapter 42.23 RCW bidders must disclose any and all personal relatives, or any relatives of the bidder's employees or subcontractors, who are presently employed by Spokane County, or who stand to realize any financial gain, or beneficial interest, if this contract is awarded to the bidder or any subcontractor of the bidder for the work of this invitation to bid.
The bidder certifies below that there are no persons, meeting the criteria above, have any beneficial interest in the work of this invitation to bid. (CHECK YES OR NO BELOW).
\square YES \square NO
If NO, list below, the name of the person, organization and relationship and interest. (Add additional pages if necessary)

Person/Entity Name: ______ Signature Of Bidder: _____

SUBCONTRACTOR LIST

Project No. P9230 Geiger Mag Lock and Fire Alarm CPU Installation

The bidder will provide a list of all subcontractors anticipated to be used on this project. If a subcontractor list is not submitted with the bid, it is to be delivered to the Spokane County Purchasing Department as soon after the opening as practical (48 hours). Failure to provide a list in a timely manner can delay tabulation of the bids and could cause a bid to be rejected as non-responsive.

Use copies of these pages as masters for additional attachments. <u>If no subcontractors are to be used state "none" on the line for the first contractor</u>. It is strongly recommended that the subcontractor list be enclosed with the bid documents.

Type of work – (ELECTRICAL any value): Electrical as define the bidder will be doing the work the bidder is to list its name	
Electrical Contractor Name:	
Estimated Dollar Value of work (less sales tax): \$	
Contractor's Registration Number:	
Contractor's UBI Number:	
Type of work - (OTHER-Specify If More Than 10% Of Bid	Value):
Contractor Name:	
Estimated Dollar Value of work (less sales tax): \$	
Contractor's Registration Number:	
Contractor's UBI Number:	
Type of work - (OTHER-Specify If More Than 10% Of Bid	Value):
Contractor Name:	
Estimated Dollar Value of work (less sales tax): \$	
Contractor's Registration Number:	
Contractor's UBI Number:	
Person/Entity Name:	Signature Of Bidder:

Type of work - (OTHER-Specify If More Than 10% Of Bid Value): Contractor Name: Estimated Dollar Value of work (less sales tax): \$ Contractor's Registration Number: Contractor's UBI Number:	
Type of work - (OTHER-Specify If More Than 10% Of Bid Value): Contractor Name: Estimated Dollar Value of work (less sales tax): \$ Contractor's Registration Number: Contractor's UBI Number:	
Type of work - (OTHER-Specify If More Than 10% Of Bid Value): Contractor Name: Estimated Dollar Value of work (less sales tax): \$ Contractor's Registration Number: Contractor's UBI Number:	
Type of work - (OTHER-Specify If More Than 10% Of Bid Value): Contractor Name: Estimated Dollar Value of work (less sales tax): \$ Contractor's Registration Number: Contractor's UBI Number:	
Type of work - (OTHER-Specify If More Than 10% Of Bid Value): Contractor Name: Estimated Dollar Value of work (less sales tax): \$ Contractor's Registration Number: Contractor's UBI Number:	
Type of work - (OTHER-Specify If More Than 10% Of Bid Value): Contractor Name: Estimated Dollar Value of work (less sales tax): \$ Contractor's Registration Number: Contractor's UBI Number:	
Person/Entity Name: Signature Of Bidder:	

BID DEPOSIT

]	FORM OF BID DEPOSIT - CHE	CCK ONE: I	Please submit this sheet with the bid	deposit.		
	<i>FORM</i> . ☐ CASH or CURRENCY. Attacand Table 2 below. Failure to con	h the deposi mplete the id	IER'S CHECK	cash bid deposit, to bidder's submit	the bidder must complete tal as non-responsive. C	e Table 1 Cash Bid
			Table 1- Bidder Information Cash B	Bid Bond		
	Project Number:					
	Bidder Name:					
	Email:					
	Address:					
	City, State, Zip Code	;				
			Table 2 - Cash/Currency Bid Bo	ond -		
	A Denomination		B Value	C Count	D = B x C Extended To	
	Single's		\$1.00		\$	
	Two's		\$2.00		\$	
	Five's		\$5.00		\$	
	Ten's		\$10.00		\$	
	Twenty's		\$20.00		\$	
	Fifty's		\$50.00		\$	
	One Hundred's		\$100.00		\$	
	Other (Specify)				\$	
	TOTAL = \$					
(Counted, Recorded and Received	By (Print N	Name, Sign & Date):			
(Confirmed By (Print Name, Sign	and Date):_				
Person/Entity Name: Signature of Bidder:						
			RETURN OF CASH BID DEPO	<u>OSIT</u>		
Person/Entity Name: Signature of Bidder:						
(County Official: Confirmed by:					
]	Person/Entity Name: Signature Of Bidder:					

ATTACHMENT A

SMALL WORKS ROSTER TERMS & CONDITIONS/TECHNICAL SPECIFICATION SHEET

1.01 GENERAL PROJECT DESCRIPTION: This public works project consists of

1.02 SMALL WORKS ROSTER TERMS & CONDITIONS (See Spokane County Purchasing Department website at the following URL: http://www.spokanecounty.org/purchasing/content.aspx?c=2000

1.02.01 SMALL WORKS ROSTER APPLICATION FORM:

In order to be considered for award of a contract which the County solicits under Small Works Roster Process, a contractor must be registered as a contractor under the County's Small Works Roster Process and must also be considered a responsible bidder under RCW 39.04.350. Completed SWR applications may be returned to Spokane County Purchasing Department any time <u>prior to</u> a SWR project's bid submittal due date. If your firm is not already registered under the County's Small Works Roster program, then you must complete and submit the completed and signed SWR application form which must be included along with the submission of your bid. If your firm is not already registered under the County's Small Works Roster program, then *failure to include a completed and signed SWR application along with your bid submittal shall render your bid as non-responsive*.

NOTE: BY SUBMITTING PRICING FOR THIS REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL CONTRACTOR ACKNOWLEDGES THEY HAVE REVIEWED AND AGREE TO THE "SMALL WORKS ROSTER TERMS AND CONDITIONS AS PROVIDED IN THE SMALL WORKS ROSTER APPLICATION FORM" ON THE SPOKANE COUNTY PURCHASING WEBSITE AS FOLLOWS:

http://www.spokanecounty.org/purchasing/content.aspx?c=1999

SMALL WORKS ROSTER ALTERED TERMS & CONDITIONS: For this specific project and ensuing contract, the following terms and conditions replace those specific terms and conditions listed on the Small Works Roster application form located at http://www.spokanecounty.org/purchasing/content.aspx?c=1999

- A. The County reserves the right to award Alternate bid items that may not have been awarded initially. This may occur when the County's Contract Administrator and/or Project Manager determine that the award of Alternate bid items are necessary for the proper completion of the work, and if sufficient funding has been allocated by the Board of County Commissioners for said purpose.
- B. CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION: The following identifies the titles, roles, duties and responsibilities of the authorized representatives of the Parties under this project. For the purposes of this project the Spokane County Contract Administrator, Project Manager and Contract Facilitator are defined below:
- 1. "County Contract Administrator is the County Department Head or Elected Official, or his/her designee, as identified, in the Purchase Order/Agreement. On behalf of the County the Contract Administrator's responsibilities include: (a) performance of all the duties and responsibilities set forth in the Purchase Order/Agreement; (b) the duties and responsibilities listed for the County Project Manager, if not delegated as witnessed by being named in that role as identified in the Purchase Order/Agreement; (c) serving as the primary point of contact in the day to day interaction with the contractor; (d) monitoring, reviewing and determining the acceptability of the contractor's accomplishment of the scope of work under the Purchase Order/Agreement; (e) the certification and authentication responsibilities as the Disbursing Officer under RCW 42.24.080 in connection with payments made for work performed under the Purchase Order/Agreement; (f) working out contractor performance schedules; (g) causing or initiating changes or modifications to the Purchase Order/Agreement to be coordinated through the County Contract Facilitator which may be subject to approval by the Board of County Commissioners; (h) performance of all other contract administration responsibilities; and (i) **Except for (e) and (h)** the listed duties and responsibilities may be delegated by the Contract Administrator to the Project Manager.
- 2. "County Project Manager" (also sometimes referred to as "Owner's Project Manager"). If different than the County Contract Administrator he/she shall be designated by the County Contract Administrator by being identified to perform that role in the Purchase Order/Agreement. The County Project Manager's delegated duties and responsibilities include: (a) those listed for the County Contract Administrator, **except items (e) and (h)**; and (b) a preliminary review of

the pay requests and pay applications on behalf of the Contract Administrator, but with the Contract Administrator making the final review of pay reviews and payment applications as indicated by item (e) under the County Contract Administrator; and (c) the administration, management or prosecution of all actions, duties and responsibilities to assure compliance, or completion, of the planning, oversight, coordination, execution, installation, construction and closeout of the project. For all On-Campus locations, the Facilities Director (or his/her designee) shall perform the duties and responsibilities of the County Project Manager. For Off-Campus locations, the County Project Manager's duties and responsibilities shall be performed by the County Contract Administrator unless the County Contract Administrator, together with the prior mutual written consent of the County Facilities Director, has delegated the duties and responsibilities of the County Project Manager to the Facilities Director (or his/her designee).

3. "County Contract Facilitator" is the Buyer in the Spokane County Purchasing Department as assigned by the Purchasing Director and identified to perform this role in the Purchase Order/Agreement. The Contract Facilitator's responsibilities are ministerial in nature and include the following, each of which are subject to the initiation and final review and approval made by the Contract Administrator, and where applicable, approval by the Board of County Commissioners: (a) the receipt, reviewing and processing of changes and modifications to this Agreement; (b) executing contract term renewals; (c) adding additional users to the Agreement; and (d) processing of any other form of action that could change the Agreement.

C. INDEMNIFICATION:

- 1. The Contractor is an independent contractor and not the agent or employee of the County. No liability shall attach to the County for entering into this Contract or because of any act or omission of the Contractor except as expressly provided.
- 2. The Contractor agrees to defend, indemnify and hold the County and the County's Consultant(s), when used on the project, harmless from any and all claims, including but not limited to reasonable attorney fees, demands, losses and liabilities to or by third parties arising from, resulting from or connected with services performed or to be performed under this contract by the Contractor, its agents or employees to the fullest extent permitted by law. The Contractor's duty to indemnify the County and Consultant shall not apply to liability for damages arising out of bodily injury to persons or damage to property caused by or resulting from the sole negligence of the County or Consultant, their agents or employees. The Contractor's duty to indemnify the County and Consultant for liability for damages arising out of bodily injury to persons or damage to property caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence or (a) the County or Consultant, their agents or employees, and (b) Contractor, its agents or employees shall apply only to the extent of negligence of the Contractor or its agents or employees. Contractor's duty to defend, indemnify and hold the County harmless shall include, as to all claims, demands, losses and liability to which it applies, the County's personnel-related costs, reasonable attorney's fees, court costs and all other claim-related expenses.
- 3. The Contractor's indemnification shall specifically include all claims for loss liability because of wrongful payments under the Uniform Commercial Code, or other statutory or contractual liens or rights or third parties, including taxes, accrued or accruing as a result of this contract or work performed or materials furnished directly or indirectly because of this contract.
- 4. Contractor further agrees that this duty to indemnify County applies regardless of any provisions in RCW Title 51 to the contrary, including but not limited to any immunity of Contractor for liability for injuries to Contractor's workers and employees, and Contractor hereby waives any such immunity for the purpose of this duty to indemnify County.

1.04. TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS:

1.04.01 LOCATION OF PROJECT: Geiger Corrections Center, 3507 S. Spotted Rd., Spokane, WA 99204

1.04.02 FURNISHED BY COUNTY: Electrical, trash disposal and restroom facilities.

1.04.03 TIME FOR COMPLETION: The contract shall be completed within fifteen (15) consecutive calendar days from the date of commencement stipulated in a notice to proceed with the understanding that time is of the essence in the performance of this contract. The Notice to Proceed is generally issued between 11 and 15 days after award.

1.04.04 DESCRIPTION OF WORK:

MAGNETIC LOCK INSTALLATION

- A. Install an additional twelve (12) Access Control 1200 lbs. magnetic locks on fire escape doors.
 - 1. The doors on each individual floor shall release in the event of a fire alarm.
 - 2. Individual doors shall release when deactivated by a guard in either control room ("A" or "B") via installed software.
- B. Install one (1) new DMP XR-350 Access Control Panel to Building "B" for the additional access doors.
- C. Install Entre® expansion module software to accommodate the additional access doors.
- D. Install two (2) uninterruptable power supply (UPS) units to magnetic lock power supply units. UPS units will provide power to mag locks between main power and generator backup power; for no longer than five (5) minutes.
- E. Work shall include the following:
 - 1. Set-up and staging.
 - 2. Programming of the new access control panel, software expansion module, and fire panel replays.
 - 3. System training for guards.
 - 4. Electrical permit.
- F. Anticipated List of Materials:

Anticipated List of Materials for Magnetic Lock Installation (or the equal or approved substitute – See Page 19)				
Quantity	Item Description	Item included or list substitute		
1	DMP XR-350 Access Control Panel with dialer and network communication			
1	Keypad, Full English			
12	Alarms Controls, 1200 lb. single door mag lock kit			
12	Buss relay expander (hardwired four-relay expander)			
12	Door Module – Access Control Weigand 734 Interface Module w/sounder			
2	Cascadia DC-9-12UL 12V dc 12 amp power supply			
2	UPS Battery backup, 1000va/600w			
1	DMP Entre 16-Door Expansion Software (32-door capacity			

FIRE ALARM CPU INSTALLATION

- A. Install a new intelligent fire alarm system control panel compatible with the existing:
 - 1. Notifier fire system,
 - 2. Smoke detection,
 - 3. Notification appliances, and
 - 4. Control devices.
 - 5. The new panel shall re-use the existing Notifier fire alarm system back box and door.
- B. Provide control relay points for each egress door in Building "A' (six [6] doors total) and in Building "B" (six [6] doors total), to be located at the new fire alarm control system location. And interconnected to the security system.
- C. Remove and replace existing underground control cabling between Buildings "A" and "B" with direct burial type and pull string as required.
- D. Anticipated List of Materials:

Anticipated List of Materials for Fire Alarm CPU Installation (or the equal or approved substitute – See Page 19)				
Quantity	Item Description	Item included or list substitute		
1	Notifier NFS2-640 CPU			
4	Notifier XP-6MA 2-wire Monitor Module			
1	Notifier XP-6C Control Output Module			
3	Notifier XP-6R Relay Module			
1	Notifier ACM24AT Control Annunciator			
1	Notifier APS2-6R Power Supply			
1	Miscellaneous Chassis Dress Plate(s)			
1	Belden direct burial multi-conductor cable			
1	Pull String			

- E. The following standards shall apply:
 - 1. National Fire Protection Association and National Electrical Code Standards.
 - 2. Washington State Labor and Industries Electrical Standards.
 - 3. Spokane Valley Fire Department Plan Review and Permit Fees.
- F. Work shall include the following:
 - 1. Detection or notification appliances
 - 2. Troubleshooting of existing fire alarm system wiring

EQUAL OR APPROVED SUBSTITUTES: It is the intent of the above specifications to describe and to secure bids on comparable equipment for general use for Spokane County. These specifications are intended to be precise where a specific make, model, or trade name is requested. Whenever a make, model or trade name is used, it shall be that or the equal or the approved substitute. The equal or the approved substitute means that the make, model or trade name will be given consideration if they fulfill the same performance requirements. The Board of County Commissioners reserves the right to make the decision on acceptability. Any units not conforming to Bidder's exact specifications may be rejected and it will be the responsibility of the Manufacturer and/or Bidder to conform with the requirements unless deviations have been specifically cited by the Bidder and acceptance made on the basis of the exception.

ADDITIONAL WORK REQUIREMENTS:

- The work to be performed under this project shall be performed at the Spokane County Geiger Correctional Center. The contractor shall coordinate all work and activities in such a manner that both the County and the contractor can continue operations with the least possible interference and inconvenience. The contractor shall perform all work so that means of egress from and ingress for employees may proceed without delay; and must operate with as low noise level as possible. All areas are to be kept in a clean, neat and orderly condition.
- Contractor shall obtain all required permits, inspection fees, and fees required in the performance of this project, including those charged under RCW 39.12.070 by the Department of Labor and Industries (L&I) for the approval of Statements of Intent to pay prevailing wages and the certification of Affidavits of Wages paid. L&I may also charge fees to persons or organizations requesting the arbitration of disputes under RCW 39.12.060. The Contractor is responsible for all fees resulting from these RCWs.
- Contractor shall possess all the necessary tools and materials to perform this project in a manner expected from a professional security and fire control firm.
- Contractor shall provide a one-year warranty for labor and materials.

ATTACHMENT B INFORMATION FOR BIDDERS

2.01 PREPARATION OF BID: The Bidder shall submit its proposal properly executed on the forms furnished. Only amounts and information asked for on the proposal forms will be considered as the bid. The Bidder shall bid upon the work exactly as specified. The bid price(s) shall include all necessary permits, and fees and items of labor, material, equipment, tools, overhead and compensation, supplies, taxes (except Washington State Sales Tax), utilities and other incidentals necessary to complete the work in a fully functional and operational state. All prices including bid prices are in US funds.

The bid shall be typed or filled out in ink. Numerical bid prices can be typed or printed in clean legible figures. Words shall govern in the event of discrepancies between words and figures and unit price shall govern in the event of discrepancies between unit price and extensions.

The bid shall be signed by the bidder or a representative of the bidder that has the legal authority to commit the bidder to a contractual agreement. Bids submitted by corporations shall be signed by the officer or officers having authority to sign them. If a bidder is a co-partnership, the proposal shall be signed by an authorized member of the co-partnership. When the bidder is a joint venture, the proposal shall be signed by one or more individuals as authorized by the Joint Venture. If the County should so require, evidence of legal authority to sign shall accompany the bid or be on file with the County.

Sign at the end of pages where indicated. The signature certifies that the information on that page is true and correct. Failure to do so can be cause for disqualification of the bid.

2.02 SUBMISSION: Submit only the Bid Response Document pages. Do not include any other parts or copies of the bid manual. Complete information shall be submitted detailing special equipment, appurtenances, accessories, components, and labor required for completion of this contract.

Any units not conforming to bidders exact specifications may be rejected and it will be the responsibility of the manufacturer and/or bidder to conform with the requirements unless deviations have been specifically cited by the bidder and acceptance made on the basis of the exception.

2.03 PREPARATION OF ENVELOPE: **Each Bid shall be sealed** in an opaque envelope, which has been clearly marked in the upper left corner with the words "Bid Proposal By" followed by the name and address of the bidder. In the lower left corner of the envelope the bidder shall write out the bid number "P9230 bid opening date "February 19, 2015 as amended" and name of the bid "Geiger Mag Lock and Fire Alarm CPU Installation".

2.04 UNIT PRICES AND ROUNDING: All bid prices will be as per plans and specifications and shall include but not be limited to factory standard equipment and those optional and/or alternate items as specified. When prices are to be shown in both words and figures then the words shall govern in the event of a discrepancy between the words and figures. Prices shall be inserted where noted, and the total(s) where noted.

After opening and reading bids, the County will check them for correctness of extensions of the prices per unit and the total price. If a discrepancy exists between the price per unit and the extended amount of any bid item, the price per unit will control. The total of extensions, corrected where necessary, will be used by the County.

For tabulation, award and contracting purposes unit price extensions and arithmetic calculations will be carried to the nearest penny.

2.05 TAXES: Spokane County is required to pay Washington State Sales Tax on all purchases and contracts. Sales tax should be added as a separate item only, not to be included in the price. All bidders whether inside or outside the state of Washington shall show the tax rate applicable to this bid. All taxes payable by the County as a result of this contract are considered part of the bid evaluation. Washington State tax is payable by the County direct to the state of Washington on awards made to out-of-state contractors who do not have a Washington State Sales Tax number. If you have any questions concerning the appropriate rate, call the Washington State Department of Revenue.

If a cash discount is offered and taken it is understood that sales tax will be applied to the discounted amount.

It shall be the contractor's responsibility to furnish Federal Excise Tax Exemption Certificate, when applicable.

2.06 COMPLETENESS OF BID: Each Bidder shall bid on all items in the bid. Alternative, additive, or deductive prices will not be considered unless specifically required in the Bid form.

Additional technical data furnished by a Bidder, but not required by the Contract Documents, may at the County's option be considered a part of the Bid to the extent that it is supplementary to, is consistent with and not contrary to the Contract Documents.

- 2.07 ORAL PRESENTATIONS: Bidders may be required to make an oral presentation of their Bid to Spokane County to provide an opportunity for thorough mutual understanding. The issuing office will schedule the time and location of the presentation should one be held.
- 2.08 CONTENTS OF PROPOSAL FORMS: The Bid form invites bids on definite plans and specifications. The plans, specifications and addenda relating to the project referred to in the Bid shall be considered to be part of the bid.
- 2.09 CHANGES TO THE BID: A change to the Bid already received will be considered only if the changes are received prior to the last call for bids. All changes shall be made in writing, executed and submitted in the same form and manner as the original Bid.
- 2.10 WITHDRAWAL OF PROPOSAL: Each bid shall constitute an offer to the County as outlined therein and shall be irrevocable after the last call for bids. Any bidder may withdraw its bid by giving written notice to the County at the place such proposals are to be received and at any time prior to the last call for bids. After the last call for bids, bids may not be withdrawn, unless such execution is delayed due to acts of the County, for a period exceeding sixty (60) days after the last call for bids except at the County's option.
- 2.11 POSTPONEMENT OF OPENING: The County reserves the right to postpone the date and time last announced for receiving proposals and such postponement may be made at any time prior to the last call for bids. The County will give written or telephonic notice of any such postponement to each party to whom Contract Documents have been issued, followed by issuance of an addendum confirming the changing of the announced date and time for receiving proposals.
- 2.12 DELIVERY OF PROPOSAL: Oral, telegraphic or telephonic bids or oral modifications will not be considered (this includes telecommunications such as facsimile machine).

It is the sole responsibility of the bidder to ensure that their bid is received on time and at the proper location. The bidder is solely responsible for ensuring that its bid is forwarded or delivered where specified, how specified, and when specified. Spokane County will not assume responsibility for any delay in U.S., County, or any other delivery service resulting in a bid being received late.

- 2.13 OPENING PROPOSALS: At the time and place last announced for receiving proposals and after the specified bid closing date and time, each bid, which has been received, except those, which have been properly withdrawn, will be opened.
- 2.14 EVALUATION OF PROPOSALS: In evaluating the proposals, special attention will be paid to the qualifications of the bidders when considering awarding the contract. The County reserves the right to waive minor irregularities or informalities in any or all proposals. The Spokane County Board of County Commissioners reserves the right to reject any or all bids, portion or parts thereof and to waive all minor irregularities in bidding.
- 2.15 ACCEPTANCE OF PROPOSAL: Acceptance and award of contract, when made by the County, will be to the lowest responsible bidder. Unsuccessful bidders will not automatically be notified of results. The acceptance of a Bid will be evidenced by a Notice of Award in writing signed by a duly authorized official of the County and delivered to the bidder whose Bid is accepted, in the manner provided for written notices. No other action or notice shall constitute acceptance of a Bid. The Notice of Award shall not entitle the Bidder to any contractual or other remedies against the County. No Bid shall be binding upon the County until a contract has been properly executed by the Contractor and County.

SPECIAL NOTE: A low bidder on a public works project who claims error and fails to enter into a contract is prohibited from bidding on the same project if a second or subsequent call for bids is made for the project.

- 2.16 AWARD OF BID: Bid award does not itself constitute a contract. The bidder will have ten (10) days from the date of the notice of award, exclusive of the day of notice, to provide: 1) a signed copy of the contract; and 2) a Contractor's Bond (Performance and Payment Bond), contract with the duly authorized signatures affixed thereto; and 3) certificate of insurance (Public Liability and Property Damage Insurance) in the specified amounts and with the following additional insured endorsement: "Spokane County, its officers, agents and employees are named as an additional insured as respects to project number P9230. The certificate holder will be Spokane County, C/O Spokane County Purchasing Department, 1101 W. College Ave., Suite 241B, Spokane, WA 99201. Upon satisfactory fulfillment of these requirements and contract signature by the Spokane County Board of County Commissioners the contract will be considered to be executed and a written Notice to Proceed will be issued.
- 2.17 ADDITIVE/DEDUCTIVE ALTERNATES: While it is the intent of the County to award all bid items the County shall have the right to accept alternates, if called for in the bid documents, in any order or combination and to determine the bid price of the apparent low Bidder on the basis of the sum of the Base Bid and any or all of the alternates accepted.

The County reserves the right to award Alternate bid items that may not have been awarded initially by the Board of County Commissioners. This may occur when the County's Contract Administrator and/or Project Manager determine that the award of Alternate bid items are necessary for the proper completion of the work, and if sufficient funding has been allocated by the Board of County Commissioners for said purpose.

- 2.18 TIME FOR COMPLETION AND LIQUIDATED DAMAGES: Time for completion is stipulated in the bid response documents. Bidder shall also agree to liquidated damages stipulations if indicated in Attachment.
- 2.19 WAGE RATES AND EMPLOYMENT: Bidders shall acquaint themselves with conditions affecting Federal/State labor rates and impending negotiations for labor agreements.

The successful bidder shall complete and file State of Washington, Department of Labor And Industries, Statement of Intent to Pay Prevailing Wages on Public Contract form and shall familiarize itself with all its requirements. The successful bidder shall also be responsible for and pay all costs pertaining to the processing of these forms as part of this contract.

The prevailing wage schedule is located in the Appendix. The bidder is solely responsible for determining the applicable labor classification(s) and utilizing the appropriate and correct prevailing wage and benefit rate(s) in submitting its bid based on these specifications.

2.20 BID PROTESTS FOR PUBLIC WORKS: When the County receives a written protest from a bidder for a public works project which is the subject of competitive bids, the County will not execute a contract for the project with anyone other than the protesting bidder without first providing at least two full business days' written notice of the County's intent to execute a contract for the project; provided that the protesting bidder submits notice in writing of its protest no later than two full business days following bid opening. Intermediate Saturdays, Sundays, and legal holidays are not counted.

A protest submittal will be delivered to the Spokane County Purchasing Department, 1101 W. College Ave., Suite 241B, Spokane, WA 99201, phone (509) 477-2301, fax (509) 477-6627 with the words "Bid Protest" prominently and clearly displayed on any outer cover containing the protest notice as well as on the notice itself. The following minimum information should be included in the written protest notice: 1) The name, address and phone number (including area code) of the bidder; and 2) the bidder contact person's name and telephone number (including area code); and 3) a statement(s) describing the nature of the protest; and 4) the County bid number and title.

A low bidder on a public works project who claims error and fails to enter into a contract is prohibited from bidding on the same project if a second or subsequent call for bids is made for the project.

ATTACHMENT C - INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

- A. The Contractor shall furnish and maintain all insurance as required herein and comply with all limits, terms and conditions stipulated therein, at their expense, for the duration of the contract. Following is a list of requirements for this contract. Any exclusion that may restrict required coverage must be pre-approved by the Spokane County Risk Management Department. Work under this contract shall not commence until evidence of all required insurance, policy endorsement and bonding are provided to the County of Spokane. The Contractor's insurer shall have a minimum A.M. Best's rating of A-VII and shall be licensed to do business in the State of Washington. Evidence of such insurance shall consist of a completed copy of the certificate of insurance, signed by the insurance agent for the Contractor and returned to the Spokane County Department with whom the contract is executed. The insurance policy or policies will not be canceled, materially changed or altered without forty-five (45) days prior notice submitted to the department with whom the contract is executed. The policy shall be endorsed and the certificate shall reflect that the County of Spokane is an additional named insured on the Contractor's general liability policy with respect to activities under the contract. The policy shall provide and the certificate shall reflect that the insurance afforded applies separately to each insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought except with respect to the limits of the company's liability.
- B. The policy shall be endorsed and the certificate shall reflect that the insurance afforded therein shall be primary insurance and any insurance or self-insurance carried by the County shall be excess and not contributory insurance to that provided by the Contractor.
- C. The Contractor shall not commence work, nor shall the Contractor allow any subcontractor to commence work on any subcontract until a Certificate of Insurance with additional insured endorsement, meeting the requirements set forth herein, has been approved by Spokane County Risk Management Department and filed with the department with whom the contract is executed. Upon request, the contractor shall forward to the Spokane County Risk Management Department the original policy, or endorsement obtained, to the Contractor's policy currently in force.
- D. Failure of the Contractor to fully comply with the insurance requirements set forth herein, during the term of the Agreement, shall be considered a material breach of contract and cause for immediate termination of the Agreement at the County's discretion.
- E. Providing coverage in the amounts listed shall not be construed to relieve the Contractor from liability in excess of such amounts.
 - F. REQUIRED COVERAGE: The insurance shall provide the minimum coverage as set forth below:
 - 1. GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE: The Contractor shall have Commercial General Liability with limits of \$1,000,000.00 per occurrence, which includes general aggregate, products, completed operation, personal injury, fire damage and medical expense.

ADDITIONAL INSURED ENDORSEMENT: General Liability Insurance must state that Spokane County, it's officers, agents and employees, and any other entity specifically required by the provisions of this Agreement will be specifically named additional insured(s) for all coverage provided by this policy of insurance and shall be fully and completely protected by this policy from all claims. Language such as the following should be used "Spokane County, It's Officers, Agents And Employees Are Named Additional Insured."

2. PROOF OF AUTOMOBILE INSURANCE: The Contractor shall carry, for the duration of this Agreement, comprehensive automobile liability coverage of \$1,000,000.00 for any vehicle used in conjunction with the provision of services under the terms of this Contract. Said policy shall provide that it shall not be canceled, materially changed, or renewed without forty five (45) days written notice prior thereto to Spokane County.

3. WORKERS COMPENSATION: When the Contractor has employees of the company, the Contractor shall carry Worker's Compensation Industrial Injury Insurance coverage and effective in Washington State. Proof of insurance shall be reflected on the Contractor's Certificate of Insurance or by providing the Contractor's State Industrial Account Identification Number

ATTACHMENT D LIQUIDATED DAMAGE TABLE

Time is of the essence of the contract. Delays inconvenience the public and interfere with and delay commerce. Delays also cost taxpayers undue sums of money, adding time needed for administration, engineering, inspection, and supervision.

Because the County finds it impractical to calculate the actual cost of delays, it has adopted the following formula to calculate liquidated damages for failure to complete the physical work of a contract on time.

Accordingly, the Contractor agrees:

- 1. To pay (according to the following formula) liquidated damages for each calendar or working day (as specified in the time for completion in the bid documents) beyond the number of calendar or work days established for physical completion, and
- 2. To authorize the County to deduct these liquidated damages from any money due or coming due to the Contractor.

LIQUIDATED DAMAGES FORMULA

LD = 0.15C/T		
where:		
LD =	Liquidated damages per calendar or working day (rounded to the nearest dollar)	
C =	Original contract amount plus change orders	
T =	Original time for physical completion plus change orders	

When the contract work has progressed to the extent that the County has full and unrestricted use and benefit of the facilities, both from the operational and safety standpoint, and only minor incidental work, replacement of temporary substitute facilities, or correction or repair remains to physically complete the total contract, the County may determine the contract work is "substantially" complete for the purposes of this section. The County will notify the Contractor in writing of the substantial completion date. For overruns in contract time occurring after the date so established, the formula for liquidated damages shown above will not apply. For overruns in contract time occurring after the substantial completion date, liquidated damages shall be assessed on the basis of direct engineering and related costs assignable to the project until the actual physical completion date of all the contract work. The Contractor shall complete the remaining work as promptly as possible. Upon request by the County, the Contractor shall furnish a written schedule for completing the physical work on the contract.

Liquidated damages will not be assessed for any days for which an extension of time is granted. No deduction or payment of liquidated damages will, in any degree, release the contractor from further obligations and liabilities to complete the entire contract.

ATTACHMENT E BOND FORMS

The following sample forms are attached:

- Bid Deposit Surety Bond Form
 Contractor's Bond Form



SPOKANE COUNTY BID DEPOSIT SURETY BOND FORM

NAME OF PROJECT: Geiger Mag Lock and Fire Alarm CPU Installation PROJECT/BID NUMBER: P9230 NAME OF FIRM: as Principal, and as Surety, are held and firmly bound unto the COUNTY OF SPOKANE, a Washington State County, in the penal sum of FIVE PERCENT (5%) OF THE TOTAL AMOUNT BID, for the payment of which we jointly and severally bind ourselves, and our legal representatives and successors. THE CONDITIONS OF THE OBLIGATION are that if the County of Spokane shall make timely award to the Principal according to the terms of the bid documents; and the Principal shall, within ten (10) days after notice of the award, exclusive of the day of notice, enter into the contract with the County of Spokane and furnishes the contractor's bond (performance and payment bond) with Surety satisfactory to Spokane County in an amount equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the amount of the bid proposed including Washington State Sales Tax then this obligation shall be null and void; otherwise if the Principal fails to enter into the contract and furnish the contractor's bond within ten (10) days after notice of the award, exclusive of the day of notice, the amount of the bid deposit shall be forfeited to the County; but in no event will the Surety's liability exceed this bond's face amount. SIGNED AND SEALED THIS _____ DAY OF ____ YEAR 20 . PRINCIPAL SURETY Signature Signature Typed Name Typed Name Title Title (SEAL)



CONTRACTOR'S PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BOND TO DUAL OBLIGEES

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that	
(Contractor), as Principal, and	(Bonding
Company), as Surety, a corporation of	
whose principal office is located at	, are
firmly bound unto the State of Washington and Spokane County, a politic obligations of the Principal and the Surety under the Contract to which ref	
\$ (including Washingt themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns j	on State sales tax) for payment whereof Principal and Surety bind ointly and severally, firmly by these presents.
WHEREAS, Principal has by written Proposal dated for Contract Number P9230 pursuant to the terms and conditions set forth	offered to enter into a Contract with Spokane County in the Contract Documents dated
NOW, THEREFORE, the condition of this obligation is such that Contract on its part, and pay all laborers, mechanics, subcontractors and me persons or subcontractors with provisions and supplies for the carrying on all loss, cost or damage which it may suffer by reason of the failure to do a otherwise it shall remain in full force and effect.	of such work, and indemnify and hold harmless the Obligees from
All persons who have furnished labor, materials or supplies for udirect right of action under this bond, to the extent and in the manner set for	use in and about the work provided for in the Contract shall have a forth in RCW 39.08.
The said Surety for value received hereby stipulates and agrees to of the Contract or to the WORK to be performed thereunder or the SPECI obligation on this BOND, and it does hereby waive notice of any such character or to the WORK or to the SPECIFICATIONS.	
No final settlement between the OWNER and the CONTRACTO claim may be unsatisfied.	OR shall abridge the right of any beneficiary hereunder, whose
SIGNED AND SEALED THIS DAY OF YE.	AR 20
SURETY	PRINCIPAL
Signature	Signature
Typed Name	Typed Name
Title	Title
(SEAL) 091002	

ATTACHMENT F INDEX OF PREVAILING WAGE SCHEDULE DOCUMENTS

As a public work contract, the successful contractor must pay the required prevailing rates of pay for the applicable trade as stipulated by the Washington State Department of Labor and Industries in the applicable published schedule, and workers shall receive no less than the applicable prevailing rate of wage.

In the preparation of a bid submittal based on the specifications contained in this Invitation to Bid, the bidder is solely responsible to: 1) use the schedule in effect at the bid opening date and time; and 2) determine the appropriate labor classification(s); and utilize the appropriate and correct prevailing wage and benefit rate(s).

The State of Washington Department of Labor and Industries issues revised wage schedules twice per year (every 6 months) which become effective approximately the first of March and the last of August. The wage schedule that will apply to this bid will be the schedule in effect at the time and date of the actual bid opening (the published date including any changes made through the issue of addenda). Therefore the bidder is cautioned to be mindful that addendum changing the bid opening date could make the enclosed schedule obsolete. The bidder is solely responsible to determine what schedule is applicable to the bid and to use that schedule in the preparation of its bid.

Questions should be referred to the State of Washington Department of Labor & Industries, 901 North Monroe, Suite 100, Spokane, Washington, phone (509) 324-2600 or to PO Box 44540, Olympia WA 98504-4540, phone (360) 902-5335 or Fax (360) 902-5300.

It is the responsibility of the bidder to insure that the appropriate labor classification(s) are identified and that the applicable wage and benefit rates are taken into consideration when preparing their bid according to these specifications.

A copy of the applicable Prevailing Wage rate Schedule is available for viewing in the office of the Spokane County Purchasing Department. Upon request by a bidder, the Spokane County Purchasing Department can mail a hard copy of the applicable wage rates; however, respondents are encouraged to obtain a copy of the applicable Prevailing Wage rate Schedule directly from the Department of Labor & Industries website (URL) as listed below:

Prevailing wage rates can be accessed at the following Department of Labor & Industries URL:

http://www.lni.wa.gov/TradesLicensing/PrevWage/WageRates/default.asp

To identify the exact wage publication date for this project, contractors should use:

- 1 Washington State Prevailing Wage Rates for Spokane County, effective August 31, 2014.
- 2 Benefit Code Key, effective August 31, 2014.

<u>CAUTION:</u> Respondents are cautioned to be mindful that addendum changing the bid opening date could possibly make the schedule as referenced in this Attachment obsolete.

A copy of the entire Prevailing Wage Schedule is available by request made by the bidder to the Spokane County Purchasing Department at 509-477-2301.

ATTACHMENT G SAMPLE CONTRACT



COUNTY OF SPOKANE WASHINGTON

SMALL WORKS ROSTER CONSTRUCTION SERVICES AGREEMENT CONTRACT NUMBER P9230

TITLE: Construction Services, Geiger Mag Lock and Fire Alarm CPU Installation

CONTRACT SUMMARY

Estimated Contract Value: \$28,000.00

Estimated Completion Date: Fifteen (15) consecutive days from a Notice to Proceed

Contract Type: Lump Sum, Cost Not To Exceed

Contract Administrator: JoAnne Lake, Corrections Lieutenant; Phone: (509) 477-6350; Email: jlake@spokanecounty.org

PARTIES

COUNTY:

Spokane County Washington
C/O Spokane County Purchasing Department
Spokane Regional Health Building
1101 W. College Ave., Suite 241B

Spokane, WA 99201

Contract Facilitator: Bob Boyce, Buyer 3, Phone: (509) 477-3694, Fax: (509) 477-6627

Email: rboyce@spokanecounty.org

CONTRACTOR:

Contact: Phone: (509) Fax: (509)

THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into effective the [?date] by and between SPOKANE COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of Washington having offices for the transaction of business indicated above and hereinafter referred to as the "County", and the "Contractor", named and having offices for the transaction of business indicated above jointly, hereinafter referred to along with the County as the "Parties".

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Spokane County pursuant to the provisions of the Revised Code of Washington Section 36.32.120(6) has the care of County property and the management of County funds and business; and

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Spokane County pursuant to the above cited statutory section and those provisions as set forth in the Revised Code of Washington Section 39.04.155, et seq. did let out for bid the upgrading the existing access control system to include magnetic locks on fire escape doors and installing a new fire alarm system control panel; and

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Spokane County did on «Date_of_Bid_Opening» open said bid and did on ?[date] accept the bid of the Contractor herein as the lowest responsible bidder for Spokane County bid No. P9230.

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promises set forth herein, the parties hereto do mutually agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1. COMPENSATION. WORK AND SERVICES

The Contractor for the consideration of [?contract amount words] (?\$), including sales tax, for work performed as specified in the "Contract Documents" as enumerated herein below, shall in strict accordance with all of the provisions therein, perform all work and provide all materials called for by the Contract Documents Geiger Mag Lock and Fire Alarm CPU Installation. The County agrees to pay the Contractor for said work as specified in the "Contract Documents."

ARTICLE 2. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

The Contract Documents consist of this Agreement, all conditions of Spokane County Bid No. P9230 and other documents listed below issued prior to the execution of this Agreement and all modifications and change orders issued subsequent thereto. These form a contract and all are as fully a part of the contract as if attached to this Agreement or repeated herein. In the event of a conflict between documents the order of precedence will be the order listed below. An enumeration of the contract documents is set forth below:

- 1. Change Orders; and
- 2. Notice to Proceed; and
- 3. Notice of Award; and
- 4. Agreement; and
- 5. Addenda; and
- 6. Specifications and Drawings; and
- 7. The provisions of Spokane County Bid No. P9230; and
- 8. The bid proposal of the contractor dated [?]

ARTICLE 3. RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The parties intend that an independent contractor relationship will be created by this Agreement. The County is interested only in the results to be achieved, and the conduct and control of all services or work will lie solely with the Contractor. No agent, employee, servant or otherwise of the Contractor shall be or shall be deemed to be an employee, agent, servant or otherwise of the County for any purpose, and the employees of the Contractor are not entitled to any of the benefits that the County provides for County employees. The Contractor will be solely and entirely responsible for its acts and for the acts of its agents, employees, servants, subcontractors, or otherwise during the performance of his Contract. In the performance of the services herein contemplated, the Contractor is an independent contractor with the authority to control and direct the performance and details of the work, the County being interested only in the results obtained; however, the work contemplated herein must meet the approval of the County pursuant to the provisions of the agreement under which the services and work were let to the Contractor.

ARTICLE 4. INDEMNIFICATION

The Contractor is an independent contractor and not the agent or employee of the County. No liability shall attach to the County for entering into this Contract or because of any act or omission of the Contractor except as expressly provided.

The Contractor agrees to defend, indemnify and hold the County and the County's Consultant(s), when used on the project, harmless from any and all claims, including but not limited to reasonable attorney fees, demands, losses and liabilities to or by third parties arising from, resulting from or connected with services performed or to be performed under this contract by the Contractor, its agents or employees to the fullest extent permitted by law. The Contractor's duty to indemnify the County and Consultant shall not apply to liability for damages arising out of bodily injury to persons or

damage to property caused by or resulting from the sole negligence of the County or Consultant, their agents or employees. The Contractor's duty to indemnify the County and Consultant for liability for damages arising out of bodily injury to persons or damage to property caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence or (a) the County or Consultant, their agents or employees, and (b) Contractor, its agents or employees shall apply only to the extent of negligence of the Contractor or its agents or employees. Contractor's duty to defend, indemnify and hold the County harmless shall include, as to all claims, demands, losses and liability to which it applies, the County's personnel-related costs, reasonable attorney's fees, court costs and all other claim-related expenses.

The Contractor's indemnification shall specifically include all claims for loss liability because of wrongful payments under the Uniform Commercial Code, or other statutory or contractual liens or rights or third parties, including taxes, accrued or accruing as a result of this contract or work performed or materials furnished directly or indirectly because of this contract.

Contractor further agrees that this duty to indemnify County applies regardless of any provisions in RCW Title 51 to the contrary, including but not limited to any immunity of Contractor for liability for injuries to Contractor's workers and employees, and Contractor hereby waives any such immunity for the purpose of this duty to indemnify County.

ARTICLE 5: TERMINATION: Contract(s) resulting from this bid may be terminated, in whole or in part, under the following conditions: 1) by mutual written agreement; 2) by the County for breach by the bidder of any of the obligations or requirements set forth in the contract documents. The County retains the option to require the bidder to assume liability for any and all damages, including the excess of re-procuring similar products or services; 3) for the convenience of the County; or 4) by the County for non-appropriation of funds.

ARTICLE 6: TERMINATION BY THE COUNTY WITHOUT CAUSE: Notwithstanding any other provisions contained herein, the County, without cause, may terminate the contract between the parties by providing notice to the Contractor. Upon termination under this section: 1) All remaining obligations of the parties are discharged, but any right based upon breach or performance occurring prior to termination survives; 2) If the reasonable costs of performance incurred by the Contractor prior to termination exceed the amount paid by the County to the Contract Sum, the County shall reimburse the Contractor in the amount of such excess; 3) If the amount paid by the County to the Contractor on the Contract Sum exceeds the reasonable costs of performance incurred by the Contractor prior to termination, the Contractor shall reimburse the County in the amount of such excess; 4) Any funds obtained or retained by the Contractor as provided in 2) or 3) of this paragraph, shall constitute full payment and consideration for the services performed by the Contractor prior to termination.

ARTICLE 7. MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS

The Firm will maintain, for at least three (3) years after completion of this contract, all relevant records pertaining to this contract. The Firm shall make available to the County or the Washington State Auditor or their duly authorized representatives, at any time during their normal operating hours, all records, books or pertinent information which the Firm shall have kept in conjunction with this Agreement and which the County may be required by law to include or make part of its auditing procedures, an audit trail or which may be required for the purpose of funding the services contracted for herein.

ARTICLE 8. VENUE STIPULATION

This Agreement has and shall be construed as having been made and delivered within the State of Washington and the laws of the State of Washington shall be applicable to its construction and enforcement. Any action at law, suit in equity or judicial proceeding for the enforcement of this Agreement or any provisions hereto shall be instituted only in the courts of competent jurisdiction within Spokane County, Washington.

ARTICLE 9. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The Contractor in the performance of this Agreement agrees to comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, ordinances and regulations including but not limited to those pertaining to civil rights. The Contractor may not, without the prior written approval of the County, assign, sublet or transfer in whole or in part his interest in this Agreement.

ARTICLE 10. INTEGRATION

This Agreement contains all the terms and conditions agreed upon by the Parties. No other understanding, oral or otherwise regarding the subject matter of this Agreement shall be deemed to exist or to bind any of the parties. All Parties have read and understand the above contract and now state that no representations, promises, or agreements not expressed by this Agreement have been made to induce the other to execute the same.

ARTICLE 11. LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

Time is of the essence in the performance of the contract. Because the County finds it impractical to calculate the actual costs of delays, it has adopted the Liquidated Damage Table in the Attachment to the Bid Documents.

Liquidated damages will not be assessed for any days for which an extension of time is granted. No deduction or payments of liquidated damages will in any degree, release the Contractor from further obligation and liabilities to complete the entire work.

ARTICLE 12. RECOVERY OF FUNDS

Whenever, under the contract, any sum of money shall be recoverable from or payable by the Contractor to Spokane County the same amount may be deducted from any sum due to the Contractor under the contract or under any other contract between the contractor and Spokane County. The rights of Spokane County are in addition and without prejudice to any other right Spokane County may have to claim the amount of any loss or damage suffered by Spokane County on account of the acts or omissions of the Contractor.

ARTICLE 13. ENFORCEMENT COSTS

If any legal action or other proceeding is brought for the enforcement of this Contract, or because of an alleged dispute, breach, default or misrepresentation in connection with any provisions of this Contract, the successful or prevailing party or parties shall be entitled to recover reasonable attorney's fees, court costs, and all expenses (including taxes) even if not taxable as court costs (including, without limitation, all such fees, costs, and expenses incident to appeals), incurred in that action or proceeding, in addition to any other relief to which such party or parties may be entitled.

ARTICLE 14. ANTI-KICKBACK

No officer or employee of the County, having the power or duty to perform an official act or action related to this Agreement, shall have or acquire any interest in this agreement, or have solicited, accepted or granted a present or future gift, favor, service, or other thing of value from or to any person involved in this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said Contractor has executed this instrument, and the said Board of County Commissioners pursuant to resolution duly adopted, has caused this instrument to be executed by and in the name of said Board on the day and year set forth herein.

				TY COMMISSIONERS JNTY, WASHINGTON
			TODD MIELKE, CH	IAIR
ATTEST:				
			SHELLY O'QUINN	, VICE-CHAIR
BY:				
Daniela Erickson Clerk of the Board			AL FRENCH, COM	MISSIONER
dated				
			CONTRACTOR	
			By:	
			Title:	
			(type of authority, e.g	g. officer, trustee, etc.)
(Notary for contractor's signature) STATE OF)			
STATE OF) ss)			
I certify that I know or		y evidence that		ne of person)
	e the instrument	and acknowledge	dged that he/she signed the dit as the type of author	his instrument, on oath stated that rity, as listed above, of the Contractor
DATED this day o	f	, 20		
			BLIC IN AND FOR TH	E
		Residing at		
		Му	commission	expires

ATTACHMENT H

SPOKANE COUNTY SMALL WORKS ROSTER (SWR) APPLICATION FORM

PAGE 1 OF 2

Bonded with:

Liability Insurance with:

Spokane County Purchasing Departme Second Floor - Spokane Regional Hea 1101 W. College Avenue, Suite 241B Spokane, WA 99201-2010	Ith Building speci Yes	NOTE TO CONTRACTOR: Are you able to receive specifications via e-mail (MS Word or Excel files)? Yes □ No □ E-mail address		
the Spokane County's Small Works	"Small Works Roster" in accord Roster program as set forth, m	lance with R.C.W. 39.04.155 and the teaning and and updated on Spokane Co		
following URL: http://www.spokanec	ounty.org/purchasing/content.asp	<u>1x?c=2000</u>		
Firm Name:				
Contact:				
Address:				
City:	State:	Zip:		
"Remit To" Address (if different):				
Telephone: Day	Night	Fax		
Washington State Contractor's Licens	e No:			
Washington State UBI No:				

My firm wishes to be included on the Rosters for the categories of work as indicated by the boxes that have been checked on the Area of Expertise Table, listed on page 2 of this application.

By signing below, I certify that I have reviewed and I understand Spokane County's related standard terms and conditions for the Small Works Roster program, as well as, Washington's statutory requirements for prevailing wage, bonding, and State Contractor registration requirements, including any changes or amendments thereto, which shall apply to all projects solicited by Spokane County under the Small Works Roster, or limited Public Works Roster processes. I understand that it is the responsibility of me and the owner/officers of my firm to know, review and understand the Spokane County's related standard terms and conditions for the Small Works Roster program and to monitor the County's website for any changes or modifications made thereto.

I also understand that to be maintained on the Roster, my firm must respond to every Invitation to Bid (ITB) with, at minimum, a written "No Bid" response, otherwise my firm may at the County's sole option, be deleted from the Roster.

I further understand that it is my firm's (i.e., the Contractor's) responsibility to keep abreast of current Small Works Roster program and project requirements and notices posted to the Spokane County Purchasing website regarding the Small Works Rosters and that Spokane County is not responsible for communicating SWR program changes or amended requirements which may by the County or the State

I certify that to the best of my knowledge and belief the information contained in this submittal is accurate and complete. I further certify that I have the legal authority to commit this agency to a contractual agreement. I realize the final funding for any service is based upon annual budget amounts approved by the Spokane County Board of County Commissioners.

Signed	Title	Date

ATTACHMENT H

SPOKANE COUNTY SMALL WORKS ROSTER (SWR) APPLICATION FORM

PAGE 2 OF 2

AREA OF EXPERTISE TABLE (CATEGORIES OF WORK)

SWR103 - Boiler Maintenance and Repair SWR104 - Bridge Construction / Reconstruction / Rehab SWR105 - Cabinet Making SWR106 - Carpentry SWR107 - Cement Treated Base Roadways SWR108 - Concrete Curb, Gutter and Sidewalk SWR109 - Concrete Cutting SWR110 - Concrete / Masonry (including masonry fence SWR111 - Concrete, Pre-cast Supply & Erection SWR112 - Crack Sealing SWR113 - Demolition SWR114 - Drilling, Core and Rotary (including water we SWR115 - Dust Control and Abatement SWR116 - Electrical (Construction & Traffic) SWR117 - Erosion Control SWR118 - Excavation, Fill Material and Grading SWR119 - Fencing (non-masonry) SWR120 - General Contracting (Construct, Renovate, Re SWR121 - Guardrail Replacement and Repair SWR122 - Hydro-seeding SWR123 - Irrigation and Sprinkler Systems SWR124 - Landscaping (General)	SWR130 - Pavement Striping, Legends and Marking SWR131 - Pavement Sweeping SWR132 - Pool Services, Including Pool Draining SWR133 - Railroad Track Construction & Repair Struction SWR134 - Retaining Walls SWR135 - Roadway Construction SWR136 - Roof, Re-Roof and Roof Maintenance SWR137 - Sanitary Sewer Construction SWR138 - Security System Equipment and Installat SWR139 - Septic System Services Including Pumpin SWR140 - Sign Installation, Non-Electrical (traffic) SWR141 - Slurry Sealing SWR142 - Stormwater Fac Install, Replace & Renot SWR143 - Street Illumination SWR144 - Stump Grinding and Removal
	SWR 153 – Flooring Services